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Question: 131
Topic: National Broadband Network
Senator Birmingham asked:

Minister you referred in your opening statement to the inquiry by the Auditor-General.  Obviously you would have seen his correspondence back to you.  I note in his correspondence that he indicates that the department:

…received specialist technical advice that proponents would need at least 12 weeks to consider network dimensioning, design and costing in developing their proposals.

When did the department receive that advice and when did the Department give that advice to you?
Answer: 

It is not proposed to comment on matters relating to the Request for Proposals process.










Question: 138

Topic: National Broadband Network
Senator Birmingham asked:

Is the probity advice given to you in writing?

Senator Conroy…I am happy to take that on notice and see if there is anything further we would like to add.

Would you consider releasing that probity advice insofar as it relates specifically to your not commenting on this process?

Senator Conroy…I can take that on notice and see if there is anything further we would like to add.

And preferably to actually respond to that question on notice relatively soon?

Answer: 

I have considered the matter and there is nothing further to add.










Question: 139

Topic: National Broadband Network
Senator Birmingham asked:

When did you decide to change the deadline for the lodgement of request for proposals from 25 July to the 12-week period after the provision of network information?

Senator Conroy…We will take that on notice and see if there is anything further I would like to add, I will.

Why did you leave it so long to change the close-off date?

Do you believe that this delay, particularly the delay from the release of the RFP documentation until bidders are going to actually receive fair and equitable data, has put Telstra at a distinct disadvantage over other bidders?

Senator Conroy…I will take that on notice and, if there is anything that I want to add, I will get back to you.
Answer: 

On 22 May 2008, Minister Conroy announced that proponents would have 12 weeks to consider final network information before lodging submissions. This amendment to the timeline was made in the month following the release of the Request for Proposals. 

On 3 September, Minister Conroy announced final network information was available to proponents, and that 26 November would be the deadline for lodgment of proposals. This gave proponents 12 weeks to review the network information and prepare proposals. 

The Government does not consider that this has advantaged or disadvantaged any pre-qualified proponents.











Question: 140

Topic: National Broadband Network
Senator Birmingham asked:

Would you agree that it is coincidental in the extreme that the day the Auditor-General released his response to Mr Billson’s inquiries was the very day that you chose to change the deadline for the lodgement of the RFPs?

Did the Auditor-General’s inquiry, combined with pressure from the opposition and commentary from prospective bidders, prompt the minister to extend the process?

Senator Conroy…I am happy to take that on notice. If there is anything further to the answers I have already given in the opening statement.  I will get back to you.

Answer: 

As indicated in the Minister Conroy’s media release of 22 May, it was considered necessary to ensure proponents had sufficient time to consider network information from the date all material was made available. 











Question: 141

Topic: National Broadband Network
Senator Birmingham asked:

Did the Auditor-General provide the department with his views on the timing required by prospective bidders to lodge their bids prior to the release of his response to the department or prior to your announcement.

In hindsight, Minister, do you concede that the 25 July deadline you set was reckless and unrealistic.

Senator Conroy…I am happy to take that on notice. If there is anything further that I want to add, I will let you know.

Answer: 

The timeline was always dependent on proponents having access to network information to assist in the preparation of robust and innovative proposals. The timeline was clearly noted as indicative in the Request for Proposals.  

The Auditor-General’s views on the process are set out in his letter on 22 May 2008 to the Hon. Bruce Billson MP. The Auditor-General’s letter was made available on the Australian National Audit Office website on 23 May 2008.











Question: 143

Topic: National Broadband Network
Senator Parry asked:

Mr Trujillo said in The Australian on Thursday of last week, the 22 May 2008—that the rollout will be about $15 billion.  You have been saying $4.7 billion.  Why is there a discrepancy?

Senator Conroy…I am happy to take that on notice and, if there is anything further that I would like to add, I will get back to you.

So you are ruling out a single cent above $4.7 billion, despite the commentary of $15 billion by Mr Trujillo and other commentary of about $10 billion.
Answer: 

I have considered the matter and there is nothing further to add.










Question: 144

Topic: National Broadband Network
Senator Parry asked:

You have indicated that it will be not one cent more than $4.7 billion, so you do not expect the government to have to put in any more money.  Can you indicate what other countries have put out a fibre based network, a broadband network?  What examples are there: How is it working: And what is the competition like in these countries?

Senator Conroy…I will take that on notice and, if there is anything I want to add, I will get back to you.

Has any country, to your knowledge, tried to fit out an entire nation?

Answer: 

There are a number of examples of countries where a variety of next generation, fibre-based networks (e.g. fibre to the home, fibre to the node, fibre to the cabinet and upgrades to core networks) are planned or have commenced being deployed, including:

· France;

· Germany;

· Italy;

· the Netherlands;

· the United Kingdom;

· the United States of America;

· New Zealand;

· Japan;

· Singapore;

· South Korea; and

· Taiwan.

The scope and the timeframes for deployments differ from country to country.  Singapore, for example, proposes that its national roll-out will be completed by 2015. British Telecom proposes that its 21st Century network will be completed during 2010-11.  KPN in the Netherlands expects to complete its national roll-out by 2010.  In Taiwan Chungwha Telecom proposes to complete its roll out over the next five years.

Where roll-outs of new networks have commenced they are at relatively early stages and hence it is too early to report on outcomes.











Question: 145

Topic: National Broadband Network
Senator Parry asked:

Can you indicate, or can any departmental official indicate, how many kilometres of fibre will be needed to run out the broadband?  Any Idea?  Surely there must be some estimation.

Senator Conroy…..I will take it on notice and, if there is anything further I wish to add, we will get back to you.
Answer: 

I have considered the matter and there is nothing further to add.










Question: 146

Topic: National Broadband Network
Senator Birmingham asked:

As the timetable is delayed at present, the potential is that 2013 becomes an indicative promise was well as an indicative date.  Minister, can you estimate when consumers living outside metropolitan areas in large regional centres will be connected to the new network?

Senator Conroy…I am happy to take that on notice.  If there is anything further that I would like to add to the opening statement on that, I will get back to you.
Answer: 

Clause 1.3.1.7 of the National Broadband Network (NBN) Request for Proposals (RFP) states that one of the Commonwealth’s objectives is that the NBN ‘is rolled out and made operational progressively over five years from the date of execution of a contract between the Commonwealth and successful Proponent.’

Clause 1.5.5 of the RFP states that the Government expects that 98 per cent coverage will be met within five years of contract award, and that the Government expects services to be offered progressively as the network is rolled out. It asks proponents to indicate the extent to which Proposals are able to prioritise areas that cannot currently access minimum speeds of 12 Mbps.










Question: 147

Topic: National Broadband Network
Senator Birmingham asked:

Why is it necessary for the panel to seek guidance from the minister or indeed vice versa on the government’s position on policy or regulatory matters?  Shouldn’t the positions be clear?

Senator Conroy…we will take that on notice and, if there is anything further we would like to add, we will get back to you
Answer: 

Clause 10.2.3 of the National Broadband Network (NBN) Request for Proposals states that the Panel of Experts will advise the Minister on its progress in the assessment of Proposals and the Minister may ask questions of the Panel. Where the Panel or the Minister considers it appropriate, the Panel may seek guidance from the Minister or the Minister may provide guidance on the Government’s position on policy and regulatory issues.










Question: 148

Topic: National Broadband Network
Senator Birmingham asked:

Minister, do you stand by your comments and indications that you will accept non-complying bids?

Senator Conroy…I am happy to take that on notice.  If there is anything further to, I will get back to you.

Answer: 

The Request for Proposals is a publicly available document that clearly sets out the Commonwealth’s 18 objectives for the National Broadband Network and the criteria against which proposals will be evaluated.
Clauses 10.8 and 10.9 of the Request for Proposals set out the very few minimum mandatory requirements that Proponents must meet in their Proposals. If these requirements are not met a Proposal will not be considered further in the process.

Question: 149

Topic: National Broadband Network
Senator Birmingham asked:

Has the probity officer provided advice in relation to the acceptance of non-complying bids?

Has the probity officer or the department itself or yourself considered the Auditor-General’s comments that the amendments to the RFP would be required for non-compliant bids to be accepted?

Is there any concern that your comments relating to the acceptance of non-complying bids are in breach of the tender guidelines at all?

How do you expect those wishing to lodge an RFP to know whether or not non-complying bids will be accepted?

Will those potential bidders be able to clarify in advance of lodging their bids the non-compliant aspects and whether those changes or non-compliant aspects will be accepted?

When do you expect to clarify the government’s position in relation to non-complying bids?

Has the department started to draft amendments to the RFP in light of the Auditor-General’s comments that the acceptance of non-complying bids would require amendment to the RFP?

Senator Conroy… I am happy to get back to you if there is anything .further that I would like to add.
Answer: 

The Request for Proposals is a publicly available document that clearly sets out the Commonwealth’s 18 objectives for the National Broadband Network and the criteria against which proposals will be evaluated. 
Clauses 10.8 and 10.9 of the Request for Proposals set out the very few minimum mandatory requirements that Proponents must meet in their Proposals. If these requirements are not met a Proposal will not be considered further in the process.










Question: 150

Topic: National Broadband Network
Senator Birmingham asked:

Aside from the expert panel meeting as an expert panel, who have they met with?

Mr Mason….As a panel they have met with specialist advisers, the probity adviser and the National Broadband Network Taskforce within the department.  Our specialist advisers included the legal advisers, the technical adviser and the commercial adviser.  They have met with the Minister as well.

If checking the records indicates there are any others, if you could indicate that to the committee that would be appreciated.

Answer: 

As a panel, the Panel of Experts has met with the National Broadband Network Taskforce within the Department and specialist advisers, which include the legal, probity, technical, regulatory and commercial advisers.  Since the Budget Estimates hearing, the Panel has received a briefing on regulatory issues from the Australian Competition and Consumer Commission (ACCC). The Minister and three of his advisers met with the Panel at their first meeting.











Question: 151

Topic: National Broadband Network
Senator Birmingham asked:

Can you indicate-when you last met with a prospective bidder in relation to the NBN?

We obviously all know who a number of them may be from their self-disclosures.
Answer: 

The Minister continues to meet a full range of stakeholders in the course of conducting his normal business but in doing so, consistent with probity advice, he does not discuss the NBN beyond what is in the public domain.










Question: 157

Topic: National Broadband Network
Senator Birmingham asked:

How committed is the government to ensuring some form of separation between the wholesale and retail operations of the future owner-operator of the NBN?

Senator Conroy…I am happy to take that on notice, and if there is anything further we wish to add to the opening statement we will get back to you.

Does the government have a preference for a strengthened form of operational separation, or functional separation, or actual structural separation?

Answer: 

Clause 1.3.1.10 of the Request for Proposals (RFP) states that one of the Commonwealth’s objectives for the NBN is that it facilitates competition through open access arrangements that ensure equivalence of price and non-price terms and conditions, and provide scope for access seekers to differentiate their product offerings.

Clause 1.5.16 of the RFP states that if a proponent proposes to supply both wholesale and retail services it should demonstrate what structural measures or models it proposes be put in place and maintained to prevent inappropriate self-preferential treatment and ensure that effective open access is achieved on the terms required by the Commonwealth.

Section 2.5 of Schedule 2 of the RFP asks proponents to describe the proposed ownership and operational structure of the NBN, including any functional or structural separation of network ownership from wholesale and retail businesses.

In the context of the Request for Proposal process, the Government has now received in excess of 80 submissions on the regulatory environment for the National Broadband Network.  The Expert Panel will take these submissions into account in evaluating proposals.











Question: 158

Topic: National Broadband Network 
Senator Birmingham asked:

Will the government consider updating the RFP to reflect the very strong preferences of your state Labor colleagues?

Senator Conroy…I am happy to take that on notice, and if there is anything further than what is in the opening statement that we would like to add, we will get back to you.
Answer: 

Clause 1.3.1.10 of the Request for Proposals (RFP) states that one of the Commonwealth’s objectives for the NBN is that it facilitates competition through open access arrangements that ensure equivalence of price and non-price terms and conditions, and provide scope for access seekers to differentiate their product offerings.

Clause 1.5.16 of the RFP states that if a proponent proposes to supply both wholesale and retail services it should demonstrate what structural measures or models it proposes be put in place and maintained to prevent inappropriate self-preferential treatment and ensure that effective open access is achieved on the terms required by the Commonwealth.
Section 2.5 of Schedule 2 of the RFP asks proponents to describe the proposed ownership and operational structure of the NBN, including any functional or structural separation of network ownership from wholesale and retail businesses.











Question: 159

Topic: National Broadband Network
Senator Birmingham asked:

You indicated that your meeting on, I think, 9 May-with TERRiA consortium was cancelled on the basis of probity advice.  Did you meet with any prospective bidders between 11 April, when the RFP was released, and May 9?

I would be eager to know if you met with any companies to have discussions in any way, shape or form related to the RFP between 11 April and the advice on probity that you said you received a day or two before 9 May.

Answer: 

The Minister continues to meet a full range of stakeholders in the course of conducting his normal business but in doing so, consistent with probity advice, he does not discuss the NBN beyond what is in the public domain.










Question: 160

Topic: National Broadband Network
Senator Birmingham asked:

Does the probity advice now restrict attendance by you or more particularly by potential bidders at Labor Party fundraisers paying thousands of dollars to sit next to you?

Senator Conroy……Could I take that on notice?

How do you interpret that section as it relates to parties attending ALP fundraisers or making donations to the ALP?

Senator Conroy….I am happy to take that on notice and get back to you if there is any information I would like to add.

In relation to probity issues about Labor Party fundraisers, can we expect a quick turnaround on that one?
Answer: 

The Australian Government Solicitor has been engaged to provide professional probity advice to the Department and to my office. 

Clauses 7.1.2.3 and 10.7.5 of the Request for Proposals to Roll-out and Operate a National Broadband Network for Australia (the RFP) requires that proponents submitting a proposal in response to the RFP should not communicate with, attempt to solicit information from, or improperly influence, any current or former Minister or Ministerial adviser in relation to the RFP process. 











Question: 161

Topic: National Broadband Network
Senator Birmingham asked:

Did you attend the budget night function in the Great Hall?

Senator Conroy…The answer is, yes.  I did attend that.

Who was seated at your table?
Answer: 

Below are the list of people who were seated at the table:

· Anne Hurley- Communications Alliance
· Chris Blyth-UBS

· Chris Schroor- Springfield Land Corporation

· Craig Scroggie- Symantec

· Gordon Tudor- ETT Satellite

· Joan Warner- Commercial Radio Australia

· Maha Krishnapillai- Optus

· Malcolm Richards- Electrical and Communications Association (ECA)

· Neil Grant- Australia Hotels Association

· Tony Wright- Cisco

· Tracey Fellows-Microsoft 

Question: 162

Topic: National Broadband Network
Senator Birmingham asked:

Minister, your office described what has generally been referred to as the gag order in the RFP documents as quite common.  Are you aware of legal opinion that this provision is, in fact, quite uncommon?  If it is quite common, can you cite similar examples?

Senator Conroy…I will take that on notice.  If there is anything further to the opening statement that I would like to add, I will.
Answer: 

The provision in the Request for Proposals is fairly common within Commonwealth tender documents, particularly those involving significant Government expenditure.

The provision’s purpose is to protect the integrity of the process.

There are a number of recent examples where significant, complex Commonwealth procurement process contain such a clause.  In particular, a Public Statement provision in the same or similar terms can be found in all eight Requests for Tender released by the then Department of Employment and Workplace Relations (DEWR) in 2006 for Employment and Related Services (including the Job Network), the Department of Human Services Access Card RFT, and the Defence Single LEAP Phase 2 RFT for accommodation and support services.  It was also used in the sale of Sydney Airport.

Proponents are able to contact the probity adviser at any stage if they have concerns about the conduct of the Request for Proposals process.

Question: 163

Topic: National Broadband Network
Senator Birmingham asked:

That clause (8.5.1) strikes me as relating to the government’s obligations under the RFP and, indeed, seems to be the out clause for the government under the RFP.  Are there legally binding obligations that exist that the bidders are bound to when they enter into this process?

Senator Conroy…We will take that on notice and add anything further I can add to my opening statement we will get back to you.
Answer: 

Potential Proponents were required to lodge pre-qualification requirements by 23 May 2008, including entering into a detailed Confidentiality Deed to restrict their use and disclosure of Confidential Information supplied by the Commonwealth (Section 8, Schedule 2 of the RFP). 
This legally binding obligation applies to Proponents from the time that they have pre-qualified.  

The lodgement and execution of a Proposal carries a range of additional legally binding obligations, as described in Schedule 1 of the Request for Proposal, including that a Proponent:

· agrees to be bound by the conditions of the RFP; 

· agrees to keep its offer open for not less than 12 months; and 

· gives a range of binding representations and warranties regarding its Proposal and its conduct (including in relation to its conduct prior to lodgement of its Proposal).











Question: 164

Topic: National Broadband Network
Senator Birmingham asked:

re report to the Minister on the regulatory process…

Will that report be made public….Even if it were to be made public at the conclusion of the letting of the tender to a successful bidder?

Senator Conroy:  I am happy to take that on notice and consider that, specifically at the conclusion of the process.

Answer: 

Subject to the sensitivity of the commercial information contained in the Panel’s report to the Minister on its assessment of proposals, the Government will make a decision on whether to publish all or part of the Panel’s report at an appropriate time.











Question: 165

Topic: National Broadband Network
Senator Birmingham asked:

I turn to issues around potential compensation through the NBN process.  It was report in the Australian:  Taxpayers could be forced to compensate telecommunications companies such as Telstra for the Government’s compulsory acquisition of network information for its national broadband plan, according to advice to Communications Minister Stephen Conroy.

Has such advice been given to the minister indicating that the government could be forced to provide compensation.

Senator Conroy…I will probably take that on notice and if there is anything further that we can add to the opening statement we will get back to you.

Has any company said that it may pursue compensation as a result of their complying with any of the government’s legislative requirements in this matter?

Answer: 

I have considered the matter and there is nothing further to add.
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